Present: Councillor Gary Hewson (in the Chair)

Councillors: Pat Vaughan, Alan Briggs, Jane Loffhagen, Mark Storer

and Loraine Woolley

LTP Members: Mick Barber, Caroline Coyle-Fox, Mike Asher,

Sean Newton and Debbie Rousseau( LTP Member)

Steven Bearder

**LTP Substitute Member** 

**Apologies for Absence:** None.

Also in Attendance: Councillor D Nannestad, Portfolio Holder, Quality Housing

## 39. Confirmation of Minutes - 02 February 2023

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 2 February 2023 be confirmed.

### 40. <u>Matters Arising</u>

## Minute No 30: Housing Revenue Account Business Plan 2023/28

An LTP member highlighted an issue with some of the compliance controllers on new heating systems which were too sensitive.

Matt Hillman, Assistant Director, Housing Investment advised that he had spoken to the gas servicing team regarding issues of sensitivity with new central heating controllers. Engineers had visited homes to give further advice and education on the correct operation of the units. Further enquiries were taking place to see if an alternative controller could be used which still met building regulations.

#### Minute No 32: Draft Policy- Downsizing Incentive Scheme

It was noted that a further report on progress with the Downsizing Policy would be incorporated into the work programme for Housing Scrutiny Sub Committee in the new Municipal Year as appropriate.

### Fire Safety Update

The Chair highlighted that a performance measure would be required to monitor compliance with the new fire safety regulations.

Matt Hillman, Assistant Director, Housing Investment advised that fire safety compliance would form part of the Corporate Health and Safety Policy. Officers were in the process of creating some relevant performance indicators in relation to fire doors, compliance etc. The fire door inspection team would receive further training before the fire risk tests commenced. An update on fire assessments completed would be scheduled into the work programme for Housing Scrutiny Sub Committee for June 2023.

### Scheduled Repairs Update

The Chair requested an explanation on the process manual for service consistency to be included in the scheduled repairs update due to be presented to the June meeting of Housing Scrutiny Sub Committee.

#### Overview of ASB

The Chair requested that the ASB update in August 2023 included feedback available from LTP and the Housing Officers Working Party and also the ASB accreditation.

Yvonne Fox, Assistant Director, Housing Management confirmed that the initial ASB accreditation was given in 2017. Inspectors were due to return in 2020, however, due to Covid there was now a backlog of inspections and a revised date was awaited.

# 41. Membership

The Chair welcomed Sean Newton as a new LTP member to his first meeting.

Steven Bearder would take the role of substitute LTP member.

## 42. <u>Declarations of Interest</u>

No declarations of interest were received.

## 43. Change to Order of Business

RESOLVED that the order of business be amended to allow the Fire Safety Update to be considered as the next agenda item.

## 44. Fire Safety Update

Matt Hillman, Assistant Director, Investment:

- a. updated Committee on City of Lincoln Council's (CoLC) actions/progress on fire safety following recent and impending changes to fire legislation in England
- b. reported on the background to relevant legislation on fire risk assessments and fire safety covering:
  - The Fire Safety Act 2021
  - The Fire Safety (England) Regulations 2022
  - The Buildings Safety Act 2022-applicable to High rise buildings only
- c. advised that all buildings in scope of the Buildings Safety Act would need to be registered with the Building Safety Regulator between April 2023 and October 2023; once registered, the Accountable Person(s) or landlord must apply for a Building Assessment Certificate, a process which was expected to begin April 2024 and would require information about the reasonable steps taken to prevent building safety risks
- d. reported on progress to compliance with the new fire legislation in England as detailed at paragraph 3 of the officer's report

e. requested that the content of the report be noted.

Members discussed the report in further detail.

Comments/questions were raised and responded to by officers as follows:

- Question: Was it possible for Elected members to receive a Fire safety briefing?
- Response: Officers would make arrangements to organise a briefing for members.
- Question: Were all fire safety doors being assessed?
- Response: Yes all communal doors would be checked for fire safety.

#### RESOLVED that:

- 1. Officers to organise a fire safety briefing for members.
- 2. The fire safety update be noted.

### 45. Lincoln Tenants' Panel Project Update

Mick Barber, Chair of Lincoln Tenants Panel, provided a written report on the panel's continued work on a variety of projects with tenancy services, fire safety assurance, maintenance, business management and resident involvement teams. The briefing note was designed as a regular update to members of Housing Scrutiny Sub Committee, covering the following areas:

- Within tenancy services we were working with the Void Support Officer from the Voids Team and had agreed to change the format of inspecting voids – All LTP would attend a refresher voids inspection training programme on 1<sup>st</sup> March 2023 and attend a quarterly working group to review voids process to enhance the process and to put forward recommendations. All voids inspected were of high quality and met all requirements ready to let.
- We continued to review the complaints process and our third review would take place on 28<sup>th</sup> February 2023. We had requested recommendations be shared with relevant officers together with a request for further feedback relating to some complaints and the format used.
- LTP were working closely with the Interim Maintenance Manager on the schedule of repairs project. We were attending monthly meetings to review performance and were focusing on creating a marketing programme to deliver a consistent message and information to tenants on the benefits of the schedule of repairs project.
- We had posted on our Face Book Page eight schedule repairs posts to promote and encourage tenants to make an appointment. We were in the process of working with the Communications Manager and the Interim Maintenance Manager looking at how we could share information regarding damp and mould with our tenants.
- We continued to hold our monthly LTP meetings.
- Debbie Rousseau continued to represent City of Lincoln Council (COLC) on the Association of Retained Council Housing (ARCH) Committee.

- LTP members continued to work with the Tenancy Services Manager and Area Housing Managers on the ASB accreditation and had recommended quarterly meetings to review ASB cases – the first review would take place in March 2023.
- In November, he attended the Social Housing Quality Register Panel (SHQR) launch event which highlighted how the Resident Panel would run over the next 12 months, providing the panel with opportunities to discuss topics. The SHQR panel would focus on one of the chosen topics, "how complaints are managed by landlords and the Housing Ombudsman" via the online community, this was a platform used to share experiences of social housing and thoughts about related government policies, ensuring and enabling us to have direct communication with the *Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities* (DLUHC) and help drive change for the future. The online community would involve a mixture of activities, questions and discussions on an aspect of the social housing quality programme. Our next online panel meeting was in March 2023.

RESOLVED that the content of the written update from the Chair of LTP be noted with thanks, to be continued as a regular agenda item.

## 46. Lincoln Tenants' Panel Annual Report

Moving on from Covid 19 pandemic and the lockdown periods, Lincoln Tenants Panel had strived to maintain and reintroduce business activities, and now had a mixture of face to face and virtual meetings. It held its three-year general meeting in November and attended a celebratory event at the Guildhall.

Members of Lincoln Tenants Panel (LTP) provided an overview of the activities and achievements of the LTP for the period from December 2021 to December 2022:

- Contributed to the development of a new Tenant Involvement Strategy for 2022 to 2025 which had received the approval of the Council's Executive Committee.
- Contributed to the development of a Building Safety Resident Engagement Strategy which had received the approval of the Council's Executive Committee.
- Revised its Constitution which had received the approval of the Council's Executive Committee.
- Contributed towards the development of the HRA Business Plan and Asset Management Strategy.
- Engaged with the Repairs Service Managers to develop a pilot scheme for scheduled repairs, which had now concluded and had been integrated into how repairs were carried out across the City.
- Monitored performance and challenged the council over issues.
- Re-introduced tenants' inspections for void properties and estate inspections.
- Helped to improve information provided to tenants about home garden maintenance.
- Attended Housing Scrutiny Sub Committee (HSSC) meetings and represented tenants where possible.
- Attended a training event at Trafford Hall.
- Currently working with Tenancy Services applying for ASB Accreditation status.

- Quarterly reviews carried out to assess complaints processes and procedures.
- Attended three fire safety engagement exercises delivered in partnership with Lincolnshire Fire & Rescue and City of Lincoln Council at Trent View, Shuttleworth House and Jarvis House.

Members of LTP provided further an overview of their work plan and priorities for the next 12 months as follows:

- Complaints monitoring.
- Review of Tenant Involvement Strategy action plan matrix.
- Tenant inspection of void properties.
- Tenant estate inspections.
- Performance monitoring.
- Implementation of Tenant Satisfaction Measures.
- Review of tenancy services complaints.
- · Continual review of schedule of repairs.
- Review and revision of Lincoln Standard.
- Review of communal door investment programme.
- Review and revision of communal area policy.
- Review and revision of repair policy.
- Continued development of the HRA Business Plan and Asset Management Strategy.
- Panel member of DLUHC Social Housing Quality Resident Panel

The Chair of LTP thanked our tenants' representatives, councillors and officers for their work in supporting our panel.

The Chair of Housing Scrutiny Sub Committee enquired whether there had been much interest in the LTP facebook page.

The Chair of LTP advised that the Panel was working alongside Customer Services and was eager to embrace technology. Those members of the public who had difficulties with this method or did not wish to get in touch on-line could continue to use the telephone to contact City Hall, this was not a problem.

RESOLVED that the content of the report be noted.

## 47. Performance Monitoring Report Quarter 3 - 2022/23

Yvonne Fox, Assistant Director, Housing Management:

- a) presented Housing Scrutiny Sub-Committee with a quarter 3 report on Performance Indicators for the 2022/23 financial year (April 2022- December 2022), as detailed at Appendix A
- explained that over the last 12 years the Council had been working with the Lincoln Tenants Panel to improve external scrutiny and to meet the standards implemented by the Tenant Services Authority
- highlighted that in total there were 21 measures and of those, against agreed targets, 7 were on or exceeding targets for the year (year-end), and 13 had not met the normal targets set

- d) reported that, of the 13 measures that did not meet target, 8 of these were within 5% tolerance of their respective targets (amber rating), and one measure didn't have a target (complaints replied to in line with corporate policy)
- e) referred to Appendix A of the report which attempted to simplify the overall analysis by listing performance on a service functional basis (rents, repairs etc) and then showing the source of the indicator (reason)
- f) highlighted that Appendix A detailed which targets had been met and those where we had not achieved our target
- g) provided the committee with some key figures in relation to performance targets as follows:
  - <u>% Rent Collection</u> Despite challenging times for tenants, at the end of quarter 3 the percentage of rent collected as a proportion of rent owed year to date achieved 100.46%. This was above the high target for the quarter of 96.5% and was in line with the collection rate seen in quarter 3 of 2021/22. It is important to note that in December 2022 there were 2 rent free weeks granted to residents. This took place annually in December. These rent free weeks resulted in there being a slightly lower amount of rent to be collected in the quarter, which was a contributing factor to this positive outturn. During the quarter, the addition of Sustainment Officers had ensured that vulnerable tenants were supported and income is maximised.
  - Arrears as of % Rent Debit The current tenant arrears as a percentage of the annual rent debit at the end of quarter 3 was 3.33%. This was below the high target for the quarter of 4.65% (low is good) and 1.43% less than the previous quarter. This latest outturn equated to the overall rent arrears at the end of December 2022 being £40,000 less that the same point the previous year. This was a significant improvement and was as a result of with the team working hard throughout the quarter to collect rent and push the rent first culture. During the quarter Sustainment Officers had continued to support tenants with significant benefit backdates and ensure enforcement action was avoided where possible.
  - % of Non-Decent Homes Although we continued to receive additional referrals for Doors and Windows, there had been continued progress in reducing overall failures via programmed works delivery. Also, despite 13 new failures for Electrics since October, there had been an overall reduction for failures in this category too.
  - There were now 111 properties failing the standard: 15 doors, 50 Windows, 46 Electrics and 1 Roof (1 property failed both door and windows).
  - Access protocols continued to be followed on Electrical failures. All Door and Window failures had been referred for replacement although, due to manufacturing lead times, these may not be completed before year end.
  - % of all Priority Repairs Carried out Within Time Limits (1 day) HRS The high influx of damp and mould jobs that had been reported in the last quarter had impacted on the amount of priority jobs completed. We had reallocated labour resources to accommodate these damp and mould jobs, subsequently causing missed timeframes. In addition, with the seasons changing, we had more reports of roofing leaks, guttering repairs etc. which impacted and added pressure on the resource planners, yet our level of service levels had stayed in the top region.

- Average Re-Let Period-General Needs (Excluding Major Works) The average re-let time in calendar days for all dwellings during quarter 3 was 43.31 days. This outturn was greater than the high target for the quarter of 32 days (low is good) and an increase of 4.27 days when compared to the previous quarter. Throughout the quarter labour levels continued to be difficult to maintain across all repair teams. However, despite performing below target, during the quarter the Housing Repairs Service was notified of voids quicker than in previous quarters and the number of properties awaiting allocation to contractors and our dependency on contractors decreased, which resulted in repair times being reduced. Moving forward as the void properties were repaired more quickly, the performance of this measure should improve.
- Average Re-Let Period-General Needs (Excluding Major Works) In quarter 3 the average re-let time in calendar days for all dwellings was 55.68 days. When compared to the low target for this measure of 40 days (low is good), this latest outturn was 15.68 days greater. The Housing Voids Team saw a reduction in keys coming in since the start of October 2022 (7.3 per week as opposed to 9.6 Year To Date). This enabled the team to turn around a high percentage of the legacy voids (long standing voids). In the quarter the team re-let 144 properties - 50 of these were voids over 80 days equating to 35%, which was the cause of the re-let times increasing. The team started the quarter with 131 voids in the system and at close of guarter 3 it was 81. Looking ahead to guarter 4 2022/23 and into 2023/24, additional properties were due to be introduced into the housing stock, which may result in the outturn for this measure increasing further. These properties would be on Rookery Lane, alongside 15 other properties which were due to be bought back into use. With the flexibility and availability of labour, these additional properties may make it challenging to meet the re-let timescales.
- % of Calls Answered Within 90 Seconds Responsibility of Customer Services function
- % of Complaints Replied to Within Target Time Following the tragedy in Rochdale Borough the council had received an increased number of complaints in relation to damp and mould. This increased number of complaints and subsequent works required had impacted on the council's ability to meet agreed appointments times due to lack of resources and materials. This had unfortunately led to more complaints during the quarter in relation to missed appointments and outstanding repairs as well as disrepair claims. In addition to the increase in complaints, there had also been an increase in all aspects of enquiries from customers, the MP and councillors in relation to damp and mould in council properties.
- h) welcomed members questions and comments.

Members discussed the report in full, commented/asked questions, and received relevant responses from officers as follows:

- Question: What would be the likely 'knock-on' effect on rent arrears with the rise in energy prices in April and further roll-out of UC and ESA?
- Response: Officers could not tell what the impact would be.
- Question: Was the performance measure to answer calls in 90 seconds unrealistic?

- Response: Portfolio Holder for Quality Housing: This measure was not our target as it came under the remit of Customer Services. It was true that the interpretation of calls received needed improvement.
- Response by Chair: The time period had been raised slightly moving into the new Municipal Year, when discussed at Performance Scrutiny Committee.
- Question: Was it possible to provide a figure in monetary terms as to the % rent loss to the HRA due to vacant dwellings?
- Response: These figures could be circulated/included in future reports going forward.
- Question: Could officers advise why the % of complaints replied to within target time had fallen below the target of 95% at 55.07%. If more complaints were being received it was more difficult for them to be processed in the allocated time period.
- Response: There were issues around first point of contact and interaction with Customer Services. The Housing directorate by its nature received significantly more complaints, however, some were categorised as service enquiries and needed to be apportioned correctly. More resources were being allocated to deal with complaints.
- Question: Why were there so many void propertied in a bad state of repair?
- Response: This was often due to factors outside our control. Some people
  could not afford to live independently, having lost their jobs, with lack of
  available cash for spending on the house. Keeping the property warm was
  their priority. Other tenants, particularly elderly clients refused new kitchens,
  bathrooms to bring their home up to Decent Homes Standard.
- <u>Comment</u>: An LTP member highlighted that she was told by an Aaron Services operative that they wouldn't report a repair unless told to do so by the tenant.
- <u>Response</u>: Officers would investigate further and report back to members of Housing Scrutiny Sub Committee.
- Question: Were job numbers allocated for repairs by Customer Services so there could be an Audit trail?
- Response: Yes, job numbers were allocated for every repair. There had been a few initial technical issues but these were now resolved.
- <u>Comment</u>: Customer Services staff were not asking whether the caller was vulnerable at first point of contact.
- <u>Comment</u>: There should be a template of questions to ask customers when reporting repairs.
- Response by Portfolio Holder, Quality Housing: This was the remit of Customer Services who were now fully staffed. He would raise this issue with the new Assistant Director for Customer Services.
- Officer Response: The information collected by Customer Services was very important to shape how the call was to be handled and for the correct route to be taken. It was also important to check the current contact details for the client were still valid. Interaction with the Assistant Director would address these types of problem.

- 1. Additional information be provided by officers in relation to:
  - A figure in monetary terms as to the % rent loss to the HRA due to vacant dwellings.
  - Why a tenant had been told by an Aaron Services technician that repairs were not reported unless tenants told them to do so.
- 2. The current performance outcomes during the financial year 2022/23 be noted.

### 48. Target Setting 2023/24

Yvonne Fox, Assistant Director, Housing:

- a. provided a report to advise Members of the proposed performance indicator targets normally reported to Scrutiny for 2023/24, to agree the targets against which performance information could be monitored and reported throughout the year
- b. reported that performance information was reported to the Housing Scrutiny Sub Committee on a quarterly basis, and targets reviewed on an annual basis with both tenants and the Committee at the March meeting
- c. advised that following the Covid-19 pandemic, normal management information had been collated as well as reporting performance against targets; management information had been provided wherever practically possible and members were aware of reasons for any changes to service and performance over the last few years
- d. reported that throughout 2022/23 there had been challenges in repairing and allocating empty properties due to the shortage of available workforce, supply chain issues and the increase in price of raw materials and services; new ways of delivering non-urgent repairs had been trialled and introduced and new sub-contracting arrangements were now in place
- e. highlighted that around 50% of all voids were currently resulting from the death of a tenant unfortunately, the number of tenancies becoming void had increased and the delivery of new housing developments had put further pressure on the time taken to repair a void property, particularly in cases of the death of a tenant without an executor or will which resulted in the need to apply to the Public Trustee before a tenancy could be legally terminated after 28 days
- f. added that we continued to encounter a small number of properties each month, which did not allow access for the annual gas service/safety inspection and this number was on the increase; robust processes were followed, and these failed access addresses were referred to legal services to seek an injunction from the county court in order to obtain access

## g. stated that:

• Rent collection had continued to be challenging but the focus on early help and support had seen collection rates broadly in line with targets throughout this year.

- Members and tenants agreed not to change targets relating to rent collection for a period of 2 years in 2022 due to financial uncertainties post-covid.
- Tenancy Services had placed significant emphasis on contact through calls and visits, with new targets in place for staff.
- Universal Credit (UC) claims had continued to increase. As the number
  of tenants moving on to UC increased, the proportion of tenancies in
  arrears would increase as UC was paid in arrears.
- h. referred to proposed realistic targets for 2023/24 based on current performance, national guidance and benchmarking with similar authorities as detailed at Appendix A to her report, for members consideration
- i. reported that the targets would be reviewed in six months' time when the operating climate was clearer.

Members discussed the content of the report in further detail. The following questions, comments emerged:

The Chair referred to opportunities having been made available to make adjustments to the targets and he hoped they were now attainable, in order that members could scrutinise performance according to set measures to ensure it was up to standard.

Councillor Briggs queried whether access to properties for annual gas inspections could be made compulsory the next time the Tenancy Agreement Policy was reviewed.

Councillor Nannestad, Portfolio Holder for Quality Housing highlighted that tenants felt more vulnerable and were less happy to allow access to their properties since Covid. Once a court order was applied for this ran for the lifetime of the tenancy.

Yvonne Fox, Assistant Director for Housing explained that robust procedures were in place to acquire access to properties for gas inspections. Unfortunately people with mental health issues were sometimes reluctant to allow access, however, court injunctions were not expensive.

Mick Barber, Chair of LTP highlighted that there were minimal cases involved where access to properties for gas inspections were refused. There was a time limit on central heating/hot water systems in council properties which cut out operation if the boiler was not inspected.

RESOLVED that the proposed performance targets for 2023/24 be noted and approved.

### 49. Report by Councillor Donald Nannestad, Portfolio Holder for Quality Housing

Councillor D Nannestad, Portfolio Holder for Quality Housing:

 a) presented his report regarding activity and achievements within his portfolio, which included a revised schedule of Landlord Service Performance 2022/23 in number format as well as in percentage terms

- b) added that his report was similar to that presented to Performance Scrutiny Committee previously, without the information on health and private sector housing which was not within this Committee's remit
- c) highlighted two issues facing the Housing Service:
  - New fire safety regulations which came into force later this month following on from Phase 1 of the Grenfell Tower Enquiry, which applied to all buildings containing two or more sets of domestic premises with common areas to evacuate in the event of an emergency. Buildings which were seven storeys or more were in a higher category i.e. Shuttleworth House, Jarvis House and Trent View. We had dedicated a small team to this issue, which had enabled us to respond to the changes to date. If resources allowed, we would look to make this team permanent in the new financial year.
  - The issue of mould and damp. The Rochdale inquest held in November into the death of two year old Awaab Ishak and the Coroner's findings had highlighted the dangers presented by mould and damp. We had since received a significant increase in complaints about mould and damp both in our Council stock and in the private sector. During the current Council year, we received an average of 8 inquiries a week up to the date of the inquest findings being published. In the two weeks after the Rochdale inquest was reported we received 95 inquiries. On many occasions more than one visit was needed and more than one repair was raised. In just one week in December 121 repairs were raised. We currently had a team of four operatives specifically dealing with mould and damp and if the current volume of repairs related to mould and damp continued, we would seek to make this team permanent in the new financial year.
- d) advised that his report covered the following main areas:
  - Homelessness
  - Tenancy Services
  - Housing Repairs
  - Voids
  - Housing Investment
  - New Build
  - Decarbonisation
- e) highlighted that we had invested significantly in our housing stock and were planning to spend £66.7m on improvements over the next five years
- f) reported also on progress with a housing development on Rookery Lane to add 42 new homes to the Council's housing stock due to be handed over to us at the end of March 2023, together with work anticipated to start later this calendar year to remodel existing properties at Hermit Street to provide additional flats for 2/3 people and a number of new-build homes
- g) further reported on De Wint Court now open, our first extra care home adding 70 additional homes to our stock
- h) praised housing staff for their tremendous support and the Lincoln Tenants Panel for their valuable work which continued to help improve the satisfaction of tenants

 i) invited questions from Housing Scrutiny Sub-Committee on the content of his report.

Members discussed the content of the report in further detail. The following comments/questions emerged:

- Question: Would the properties at Rookery Lane be allocated to existing tenants?.
- Response: Officers had looked at the priority waiting list in terms of need and demands. There were a mix of council tenants on the transfer list requiring larger properties, together with our statutory duty to certain people in temporary private housing and in need of re housing. The properties would be allocated in batches from April 2023.
- Question: Why had 50% of available housing been allocated to homelessness cases when we were told only 25% applied?
- <u>Response</u>: The reason for this was an increase in domestic violence, marriage breakdowns and general homeless cases. The authority had a statutory duty to house homeless people.
- Response by Councillor Nannestad, Portfolio Holder for Quality Housing: Some private landlords may decide to increase rental charges by up to £100 a month or decide to sell for a variety of reasons. Private rental for families was practically unavailable.
- Question: With 1,000 properties currently graded at EPC Rating D or below, how would the Council achieve the standard for net zero carbon emissions by Year 2030?
- Response: The policy did not quote that all properties would achieve this standard by 2030. The target was C. Each improvement was an advancement. Some Victorian terraced houses would be difficult to reach C rating due to the age of the properties,
- Question: Did the figure of £66.7m spent on housing include expenditure on estate regeneration and communal areas?
- Response: These areas would be dealt with as part of the HRA Business review. The figures were included in the Medium Term Financial Strategy, which ran for 5 years.
- Question: Who was responsible for repairing the grass verges ruined by contractors at St Peter's Avenue?
- <u>Response</u>: Officers would make checks and report back to members of Housing Scrutiny Committee.
- Comment: It was pleasing to see the new properties on Rookery Lane were B Rated.
- Question: Was there a team of operatives dealing solely with mould and damp issues?
- Response: Yes operatives had been moved across from other jobs. There may be a need to increase the 4 operatives currently assigned in the future.

### RESOLVED that:

- 1. Officers to respond to members of Housing Scrutiny Sub Committee as to who was responsible for repairing the grass verges ruined by contractors at St Peter's Avenue.
- 2. The contents of the report be received and noted with thanks.

## 50. Work Programme Update - Looking Forward to 2023/24

The Democratic Services Officer:

- a. advised members that a draft work programme for 2023/24 had been circulated to the Chair and Vice/Chair of Housing Scrutiny Sub-Committee and the Chair/Vice Chair of Lincoln Tenant's Panel for individual input/comments ready for use as a working document from the first meeting of the new Municipal Year
- b. reported that the work programme 2023/24 would be regularly updated in consultation with the Chair of Housing Scrutiny Sub-Committee and Chair/Vice Chair of Lincoln Tenants Panel
- c. highlighted that the work programme included those areas for scrutiny linked to the strategic priorities of the Council and housing matters, to ensure that the work of this committee remained relevant and proportionate.

#### RESOLVED that:

- 1. Further items to be added to the 2023/24 work programme on the following topics:
  - Downsizing Policy -June 2023
  - Update on Fire Assessments June 2023
  - Anti-Social Behaviour Accreditation- August 2023
  - Complaints
  - Lincoln Standard
- 2. The work programme for 2023/24 be noted for use as a working document from the first meeting of the new Municipal Year.